# Informix DataStage

**Operator's Guide** 

Version 3.5 April 1999 Part No. 000-5444 Published by INFORMIX<sup>®</sup> Press

Informix Corporation 4100 Bohannon Drive Menlo Park, CA 94025-1032

 $^{\odot}$  1999 Informix Corporation. All rights reserved. The following are trademarks of Informix Corporation or its affiliates:

Answers OnLine<sup>TM</sup>; CBT Store<sup>TM</sup>; C-ISAM<sup>®</sup>; Client SDK<sup>TM</sup>; ContentBase<sup>TM</sup>; Cyber Planet<sup>TM</sup>; DataBlade<sup>®</sup>; Data Director<sup>TM</sup>; Decision Frontier<sup>TM</sup>; Dynamic Scalable Architecture<sup>TM</sup>; Dynamic Server<sup>TM</sup>; Dynamic Server<sup>TM</sup>, Developer Edition<sup>TM</sup>; Dynamic Server<sup>TM</sup> with Advanced Decision Support Option<sup>TM</sup>; Dynamic Server<sup>TM</sup> with Extended Parallel Option<sup>TM</sup>; Dynamic Server<sup>TM</sup> with MetaCube<sup>®</sup> ROLAP Option; Dynamic Server<sup>TM</sup> with Universal Data Option<sup>TM</sup>; Dynamic Server<sup>TM</sup> with Web Integration Option<sup>TM</sup>; Dynamic Server<sup>TM</sup>, Workgroup Edition<sup>TM</sup>; FastStart<sup>TM</sup>; 4GL for ToolBus<sup>TM</sup>; If you can imagine it, you can manage it<sup>SM</sup>; Illustra<sup>®</sup>; INFORMIX<sup>®</sup>; Informix Data Warehouse Solutions... Turning Data Into Business Advantage<sup>TM</sup>; INFORMIX<sup>®</sup>: Enterprise Gateway with DRDA<sup>®</sup>; Informix Enterprise Merchant<sup>TM</sup>; INFORMIX<sup>®</sup>-4GL; Informix-JWorks<sup>TM</sup>; InformixLink<sup>®</sup>; Informix Session Proxy<sup>TM</sup>; InfoShelf<sup>TM</sup>; Interforum<sup>TM</sup>; I-SPY<sup>TM</sup>; Mediazation<sup>TM</sup>; MetaCube<sup>®</sup>; NewEra<sup>TM</sup>; ON-Bar<sup>TM</sup>; OnLine Dynamic Server<sup>TM</sup>; OnLine for NetWare<sup>®</sup>; OnLine/Secure Dynamic Server<sup>TM</sup>; OpenCase<sup>®</sup>; ORCA<sup>TM</sup>; Regency Support<sup>®</sup>; Solution Design Labs<sup>SM</sup>; Solution Design Program<sup>SM</sup>; SuperView<sup>®</sup>; Universal Database Components<sup>TM</sup>; Universal Web Connect<sup>TM</sup>; ViewPoint<sup>®</sup>; Visionary<sup>TM</sup>; Web Integration Suite<sup>TM</sup>. The Informix logo is registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. The DataBlade logo is registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office.

DataStage is a registered trademark of Ardent Software, Inc. UniVerse and Ardent are trademarks of Ardent Software, Inc.

Documentation Team: Oakland Editing and Production

#### GOVERNMENT LICENSE RIGHTS

Software and documentation acquired by or for the US Government are provided with rights as follows: (1) if for civilian agency use, with rights as restricted by vendor's standard license, as prescribed in FAR 12.212; (2) if for Dept. of Defense use, with rights as restricted by vendor's standard license, unless superseded by a negotiated vendor license, as prescribed in DFARS 227.7202. Any whole or partial reproduction of software or documentation marked with this legend must reproduce this legend.

ii Informix DataStage Operator's Guide

# Table of Contents

#### Preface

Organization of This Manual	vii
Documentation Conventions	viii
DataStage Documentation	viii

# Chapter 1. Introducing DataStage

What Is a Data Warehouse?	1-1
Why Do I Need One?	1-1
What Does DataStage Do?	1-2
How Is DataStage Packaged?	1-2
DataStage Projects and Jobs	1-3

# Chapter 2. DataStage Director

Starting the DataStage Director	
The DataStage Director Window	2-3
Display Area	2-3
Menu Bar	
Toolbar	
Status Bar	2-5
Job Status View	2-6
Job States	
Job Status Details	2-7
Shortcut Menus	2-8
Shortcut Menu in the Job Status View	
Shortcut Menu in the Job Log View	2-9
Shortcut Menu in the Job Schedule View	2-9
Shortcut Menu in the Monitor Window	2-10

Filtering the Job Status or Job Schedule View	2-10
Examples of Filtering by Job Name	2-12
Finding Text	2-13
Sorting Columns	2-14
Printing the Current View	2-14
What Is in the Printout	2-16
Changing the Printer Setup	2-16
Director Options	2-17
General Page	2-18
Limits Page	2-19
View Page	2-20
Tracing Page	2-21
Priority Page	2-22
Choosing an Alternative Project	2-23
Viewing Jobs in Another Project	2-23
Viewing Jobs on a Different Server	2-24
Exiting the DataStage Director	2-24

# Chapter 3. Running DataStage Jobs

Setting Job Options	3-1
Validating a Job	3-2
Running a Job	3-3
Stopping a Job	3-4
Resetting a Job	3-4
Job Scheduling	3-5
Job Schedule View	3-5
Viewing Details of a Job Schedule	3-7
Scheduling a Job	3-9
Unscheduling a Job	3-10
Rescheduling a Job	3-10
Deleting a Job	3-11
Job Administration	
Cleaning Up Job Resources	3-12
Clearing a Job Status File	3-15

DataStage Operator's Guide

# Chapter 4. Job Batches

What Is a Job Batch?	
Creating a Job Batch	
Running a Job Batch	
Scheduling a Job Batch	
Unscheduling a Job Batch	
Rescheduling a Job Batch	
Job Schedule Errors	
Editing a Job Batch	
Copying a Job Batch	
Deleting a Job Batch	

# Chapter 5. Monitoring Jobs

The Monitor Window	5-1
Setting the Server Update Interval	5-2
Saving Monitor Window Settings	5-3
Showing Links	5-3
Showing CPU Usage	5-4
Viewing and Cleaning Up Job Resources	5-5
Switching Between Monitor Windows	5-5
The Stage Status Window	5-5

# Chapter 6. The Job Log File

Job Log View	
The Event Detail Window	
Viewing Related Logs	
Filtering the Job Log View	
Purging Log File Entries	
Purging Log Entries Immediately	
Purging Log Entries Automatically .	

# Glossary

Index

DataStage Operator's Guide

# Preface

DataStage from Ardent is a powerful software suite that is used to develop and run DataStage jobs. A DataStage job can extract from different sources, and then cleanse, integrate, and transform the data according to your requirements. The clean data is ready to be imported into a data warehouse for analysis and processing by business information software.

This manual describes the DataStage Director, the DataStage component that is used to validate, schedule, run, and monitor DataStage jobs. To use this manual you should be familiar with the Windows 95 or Windows NT interface, but no other special skills or knowledge are required.

# **Organization of This Manual**

This manual contains the following:

- Chapter 1 contains an overview of DataStage and its component parts.
- Chapter 2 describes DataStage Director and how to use it.
- Chapter 3 covers how to validate, run, delete, schedule, and administer DataStage jobs.
- Chapter 4 describes job batches.
- Chapter 5 describes how to monitor a running job.
- Chapter 6 describes the job log file and the Job Log view.
- The Glossary defines terms that have specific meaning in DataStage.

# **Documentation Conventions**

This manual uses the following conventions:

Convention	Usage
Bold	In syntax, bold indicates commands, function names, keywords, and options that must be input exactly as shown. In text, bold indicates keys to press, function names, and menu selections.
Italic	In syntax, italic indicates information that you supply. In text, italic also indicates operating system commands and options, filenames, and pathnames.
Courier	Courier indicates examples of source code and system output.
Courier Bold	In examples, courier bold indicates characters that the user types or keys the user presses (for example, <b><return></return></b> ).
>	A right arrow between menu options indicates you should choose each option in sequence. For example, "Choose <b>File</b> ➤ <b>Exit</b> " means you should choose <b>File</b> from the menu bar, then choose <b>Exit</b> from the File pull-down menu.

# **DataStage Documentation**

DataStage documentation includes the following:

*DataStage Developer's Guide*: This guide describes the DataStage Manager and Designer, and how to create, design, and develop a DataStage application.

*DataStage Administrator's Guide*: This guide describes DataStage setup, routine housekeeping, and administration.

*DataStage Operator's Guide*: This guide describes the DataStage Director, and how to validate, schedule, run, and monitor DataStage applications.

These guides are also available online in PDF format. You can read them using the Adobe Acrobat Reader supplied with DataStage. See *DataStage Installation Instruc-tions* in the DataStage CD jewel case for details on installing the manuals and the Adobe Acrobat Reader.

# 1 Introducing DataStage

Many organizations want to make better use of their data. But that data may be stored in different formats in different types of database. Some data sources may be dormant archives, others may be busy operational databases. Extracting and cleaning data from these varied sources has always been time-consuming and costly – until now. DataStage makes it simple to design and develop efficient applications that make data warehousing a reality where it was impossible before.

# What Is a Data Warehouse?

A data warehouse is a central database containing copies of data from all the operational sources and archive systems in an organization. But the database does not have to be large. Instead of storing details of every transaction, order, or set of sales figures, the data warehouse stores totals, averages, area figures, and so on. This data is structured to make it easy to query and to generate reports.

Inside the data warehouse you can perform analyses that would be impractical on a working database. This means that anyone who needs access to the data gets all the information they want, and only the information they want. The data warehouse can be created or updated at any time, with minimum disruption to working systems.

# Why Do I Need One?

Working databases are busy. It is hard to gain an accurate picture of the contents of the database at any time because it changes frequently. By transferring working data into a data warehouse, you can take snapshots of what is going on. Also, working databases contain dirty data – records in different formats, with key values missing or out of range, and so on. In a fast-moving working database it is difficult to trap mistakes or incomplete entries. Using DataStage, you can cleanse

data before loading it into a data warehouse, ensuring that your business decisions are based only on valid information.

As well as a working database, you may have archive systems or incompatible data sources that you have inherited. These may be static, but inaccessible because their format is different from your working system. You can use DataStage to transform this data into compatible formats that can be stored in the data warehouse.

# What Does DataStage Do?

DataStage comes in between your data and your data warehouse. DataStage jobs process the data to meet your needs, including:

- **Extraction** DataStage takes data from indexed files, sequential files, networked databases, archives, and external data sources and stores it in the data warehouse.
- Aggregation DataStage takes your working data, calculates totals and averages, then stores it in the data warehouse. This means you have to store much less data, which is quicker and easier to access.
- **Transformation** DataStage converts inconsistent data into the required format and loads it into the data warehouse.

# How Is DataStage Packaged?

DataStage is client/server software. The server holds the data while it is being processed. The client is the interface to DataStage that is used for designing and running jobs, or managing the data in the Repository. The client components include:

- **DataStage Designer**, for creating DataStage jobs, which are compiled into executable programs that are scheduled by the DataStage Director and run by the DataStage Server.
- DataStage Director, for running DataStage jobs.
- **DataStage Manager**, for viewing and editing the contents of the Repository.
- **DataStage Administrator**, for administering DataStage projects and conducting housekeeping on the server.

The client and server components installed depend on the edition of DataStage you have purchased. DataStage is packaged in two ways:

- **Developer's Edition**, used by developers to design, develop, and create executable DataStage jobs.The Developer's Edition contains all the client and server components described earlier. The developer's role, DataStage Designer, and DataStage Manager are described in *DataStage Developer's Guide*.
- **Operator's Edition**, used by operators to validate, schedule, run, and monitor DataStage jobs that have been developed elsewhere. The Operator's Edition contains DataStage Director, DataStage Administrator, and DataStage Server components only.

# **DataStage Projects and Jobs**

You always enter DataStage through a DataStage project. When you start a DataStage client you are prompted to attach to a project. Each project contains DataStage jobs and the components required to develop or run them.

DataStage jobs are made up of individual stages. A stage represents a data source or a process. For example, one stage may extract data from a data source, while another transforms it. The data required at each stage and how it is handled is specified in the job design.

When a job design is compiled, an executable job is created. When the job is run, the processing described in the job design is performed. Variable parameters such as file names, dates, and so on, can be specified when the job is run. DataStage jobs can be exported for use on other DataStage systems.

DataStage Operator's Guide

# 2 DataStage Director

The DataStage Director is the client component that runs, schedules, and monitors jobs run by the DataStage Server. For DataStage operators, the DataStage Director is the starting point for most tasks you need to accomplish.

This chapter describes the interface to the DataStage Director and how to use it, including:

- Starting the DataStage Director
- A description of the DataStage Director window
- Finding text in the DataStage Director window, sorting data, and printing out the display
- Setting options and defaults for the DataStage Director window and for jobs you want to run
- Switching between projects and exiting the DataStage Director

# Starting the DataStage Director

To start the DataStage Director:

1. Choose **Start ➤ Programs ➤ Ardent DataStage ➤ DataStage Director**, or choose the appropriate program folder if you installed DataStage elsewhere.

The Attach to Project dialog box appears:

ļ	Attach to Project			×
	Host system:	mk70		OK
	User name:	user1	<u> </u>	Cancel
	Password:	*****		<u>H</u> elp
	Project:	MyStore	•	☑ <u>S</u> ave settings

- 2. Enter the name of your host in the **Host system** field. This is the name of the system where the DataStage Server is installed.
- 3. Enter your user name in the **User name** field. This is your user name on the server system.
- 4. Enter your password in the Password field. If you are connecting to a Windows NT server via LAN Manager, you can select the Omit check box. The User name and Password fields gray out and you log on to the server using your current Windows account details.
  - **CAUTION:** Think carefully before using the **Omit** option to log on to DataStage. If you use this option, note that:
    - You cannot specify UNC pathnames in DataStage clients.
    - You must specify the host name in uppercase.
    - You cannot access remote files.
    - You may get errors if you import metadata from an ODBC data source if you are not logged on to the same domain as the server.
- 5. Enter the name of the project you want to use or choose one from the **Project** drop-down list, which displays all the projects installed on the server.
- 6. Select the **Save settings** check box to save your logon settings. The next time you start the DataStage Director, or any other DataStage client, you are presented with the saved settings (except for your password).
- 7. Click OK. The DataStage Director window appears.
- Note: You can also start the DataStage Director from the DataStage Designer or the DataStage Manager by choosing **Tools** ➤ **Run Director**. You are auto-

matically attached to the same project and you do not see the Attach to Project dialog box. For more information about the DataStage Director, see *DataStage Developer's Guide*.

# The DataStage Director Window

The DataStage Director window appears when you start the Director:

🚰 DataStage Director - MyStore(mk70)						
<u>P</u> roject <u>V</u> iew <u>S</u> e	arch <u>J</u> ob <u>T</u> ools	<u>H</u> elp				
🖻 🎒 🖪 🄇	🔟 🎮 🗵	<b>B D</b>	🛯 🗛 🔡	3		
>Job name	Status	Started	On date	Last ran	On date	Description
Example1	Compiled Finished Compiled			16:10	19/12/96	
seqduo	Finished			18:51	15/11/96	
➢ StockMerge	Finished			15:00	30/10/96	
1						
•						Þ
Status of jobs: 5 er	ntries				Server time:	20/12/96 10:27

This section describes the features of the DataStage Director window including:

- The display area
- The menu bar
- The toolbar
- The status bar

#### **Display Area**

The display area is the main part of the DataStage Director window. There are three views:

- Job Status. The default view which displays the status of all jobs in the current project. See "Job Status View" for more information.
- Job Schedule. Displays a summary of scheduled jobs and batches. See Chapter 3, "Running DataStage Jobs," for a description of this view. To switch to this view, choose View ➤ Schedule, or click the Schedule icon on the toolbar.

DataStage Director

• Job Log. Displays the log file for a chosen job. See Chapter 6, "The Job Log File," for more details. To switch to this view, choose **View ➤ Log**, or click the **Log** icon on the toolbar.

#### Updating the Display

You can set how often the display area is updated from the server by editing the Director options. For more information, see "Director Options" on page 2-17. You can also update the screen immediately by doing one of the following:

- Choose View ➤ Refresh.
- Choose **Refresh** from the shortcut menus (see "Shortcut Menus" on page 2-8 for more details).
- Press Ctrl-R.

Each entry in the display area represents a job, scheduled job, or event in the job log, depending on the current view. An icon is displayed by default for each entry. To hide the icons, choose **Tools**  $\succ$  **Options**  $\succ$  **View**.

#### Menu Bar

The menu bar has six pull-down menus that give access to all the functions of the Director:

- Project. Opens an alternative project and sets up printing.
- View. Displays or hides the toolbar, status bar, or icons, specifies the sorting order, changes the view, filters entries, shows further details of entries, and refreshes the screen.
- Search. Starts a text search dialog box.
- Job. Validates, runs, schedules, stops, and resets jobs, purges old entries from the job log file, deletes unwanted jobs, cleans up job resources (if the administrator has enabled this option), and allows you to set default job parameter values.
- **Tools.** Monitors running jobs, manages job batches, and starts the DataStage Designer or the DataStage Manager (if these components are installed on the system) and other custom software.
- **Help.** Invokes the Help system. You can also get help from any screen or dialog box in the DataStage Director.

#### Toolbar

The toolbar gives quick access to the main functions of the DataStage Director.



The toolbar is displayed by default, but can be hidden by choosing **View** ➤ **Toolbar** or by changing the Director options. See "Director Options" on page 2-17 for more details. To display ToolTips, let the cursor rest on an icon in the toolbar.

#### **Status Bar**

The status bar appears at the bottom of the DataStage Director window and displays the following information:

- The name of a job (if you are displaying the Job Log view).
- The number of entries in the display. If you look at the Job Status or Job Schedule view and use the **Filter Entries...** option, this panel specifies the number of lines that meet the filter criteria.
- The date and time on the DataStage server.
- The number of lines in the display. If you look at the Job Log view and use the **Filter Entries...** option, this panel specifies the number of lines that meet the filter criteria.

Under certain circumstances, the number of lines in the display is replaced by the last error message issued by the server. The message disappears when the screen is refreshed.

# **Job Status View**

The Job Status view is the default view displayed when you start the DataStage Director (see "The DataStage Director Window" on page 2-3). You can change the default view by editing the Director options (see "Director Options" on page 2-17 for more details). You can also filter the jobs displayed in the view (see "Filtering the Job Status or Job Schedule View" on page 2-10).

The Job Status view contains the status of all the jobs in the current project and has the following columns:

Column	Description
Job name	The name of the job.
Status	The status of the job. See "Job States" for the possible job states and what they mean.
Started On date	The time and date a job was started. These fields are only filled in for a job with a status of Running.
Last ran On date	The time and date the job was finished, stopped, or aborted. These columns are blank for jobs that have never been run.
Description	A description of the job, if available.

#### **Job States**

The Status column in the Job Status view displays the current status of the job. The possible job states are as follows:

Job State	Description
Compiled	The job has been compiled but has not been validated or run since compilation.
Not compiled	The job is under development and has not been compiled successfully.
Running	The job is currently being run, reset, or validated.
Finished	The job has finished.
Finished (see log)	The job has finished but warning messages were generated or rows were rejected. View the log file for more details.
Stopped	The job was stopped by the operator.
Aborted	The job finished prematurely.
Validated OK	The job has been validated with no errors.

DataStage Operator's Guide

Job State	Description
Validated (see log)	The job has been validated but warning messages were generated or rows were rejected. View the log file for more details.
Failed validation	The job has been validated, but an error was found.
Has been reset	The job has been reset with no errors.

#### **Job Status Details**

To view more details about a job's status, select it in the display and do one of the following:

- Choose View ➤ Detail.
- Right-click to display the shortcut menu and choose Detail.
- Double-click the job in the display.

The Job Status Detail dialog box appears:

🗮 Job Statu	s Detail				_ 🗆 ×
Project:	MyStore (mk70)	Job name:	DEMO		Close
Status:	Finished	Started at:			Next
Wave #:	2	Last run at:	20/12/96 11:40:46		Provinue
Description:					Flexious
				<u>_</u>	<u>С</u> ору
					<u>H</u> elp
1				-	

This dialog box contains details of the selected job's status, including the following fields:

#### This field... Contains this information...

Project	The name of the project and the DataStage server.
Status	The current status of the chosen job.
Wave #	An internal number used by DataStage when the job is run.
Job name	The name of the job.

This field... Contains this information...

Started at	The date and time the job was started. This field is used only for a job with a status of Running.
Last ran at	The date and time the job was last run.
Description	A description of the job. This is the description entered by the developer when the job was created. If the job has job parameters, this column also displays the values used in the run.

Use **Copy** to copy the whole window, or selected text, to the Clipboard for use elsewhere.

Click **Next** or **Previous** to display status details for the next or previous job in the list.

Click **Close** to close the dialog box.

# **Shortcut Menus**

DataStage has shortcut menus that appear when you right-click in the display area. The menu you see depends on the view or window you are using, and what is highlighted in the window when you click the mouse.

#### Shortcut Menu in the Job Status View

This menu appears when you right-click in the display area of the Job Status view. Some options are not available if no log entry is selected. From this menu you can:

Add To Schedule	Add the job to the schedule	
Monitor	• Start a Monitor window (available only if an	
Set Defaults	entry is selected)	
View Schedule	Set job parameter defaults	
View Log	Display the Job Schedule or Job Log view	
Find	• Use <b>Find</b> to search for text in the display area	
Find Next	• Filter (limit) the jobs listed in the display area	
Refresh	Refresh the display	
Detail	• Display details of a log entry (available only if an entry is selected)	

## Shortcut Menu in the Job Log View

This menu appears when you right-click in the display area of the Job Log view. Some options are not available if no log entry is selected. From this menu you can:

Monitor	•	Start a Monitor window (available only if a log entry is selected)
Set Defaults	. •	Set job parameter defaults
View Status	•	Display the Job Status or Job Schedule view
View Schedu	le •	Use Find to search for text in the display area
Find	•	Filter (limit) log entries
Find Next	•	Refresh the display
Refresh Detail	•	Display details of a log entry (available only if a log entry is selected)
Related Log	•	Jump to the batch log from a job within a batch

## Shortcut Menu in the Job Schedule View

This menu appears when you right-click in the display area of the job schedule view. Some options are not available if no entry is selected. From this menu you can:

Add To Schedule Reschedule Unschedule	<ul><li>Schedule, reschedule, or unschedule the selected job</li><li>Set job parameter defaults</li></ul>
Set Defaults	Display the Job Status or Job Log view
View Status	Use <b>Find</b> to search for text in the display area
View Log	• Filter (limit) the jobs listed in the display area
Find	Refresh the display
Find Next Filter Refresh	• Display details of an entry in the Job Schedule view (available only if an entry is selected)
Detail	

DataStage Director

#### Shortcut Menu in the Monitor Window

This menu appears when you right-click in the Monitor window (described in Chapter 5). From this menu you can:

Refresh Detail	Refresh the display
Show links	<ul> <li>Display details of a selected stage</li> </ul>
Show %CP	Show link information in the Monitor window
Cleanup Resources	Show CPU usage in the Monitor window
Save window settings	Clean up job resources
Clear window settings	Save or clear the Monitor window settings
About	Display information about the DataStage release

# Filtering the Job Status or Job Schedule View

By default, the Job Status view or Job Schedule view displays information about all the jobs in a project. On a large project, the display may include more information than you need. If you want to focus on specific categories of job, based either on their name or their status, you can filter the view so that it displays only those jobs.

To filter the jobs in the Job Status view or the Job Schedule view:

- 1. If the view you want to filter is not already displayed, choose **View ➤ Status** or **View ➤ Schedule**, as appropriate.
- 2. Start the **Filter** option by doing one of the following:
  - Choose **View** > **Filter Entries**... from the menu bar.
  - Choose **Filter...** from the shortcut menu.
  - Press Ctrl-T.

The Filter Jobs dialog box appears.

🐂 Filter Jobs		_ 🗆 ×
Job name Include	Ob status C All C All, e <u>x</u> cept "Not compiled" C <u>I</u> erminated normally C Terminated a <u>b</u> normally	Cancel <u>H</u> elp
⊙ No jobs ○ Jobs matching:	Released jobs	

3. Choose which jobs to include in the view by clicking either the **All jobs** or **Jobs matching** option button in the **Include** area.

If you select **Jobs matching**, enter a string in the **Jobs matching** field. Only jobs that match this string will be displayed. The string can include wildcards, character lists, and character ranges.

Wildcard/Pattern	Description
?	Matches any single character.
*	Matches zero or more characters.
#	Matches a single digit.
[charlist]	Matches any single character in charlist.
[!charlist]	Matches any single character not in charlist.
[a–z]	Matches any single character in the range a-z.

- 4. Choose which jobs to exclude from the view by clicking either the **No jobs** or **Jobs matching** option button in the **Include** area. If you select **Jobs matching**, enter a string in the **Jobs matching** field. Only jobs that match this string will be excluded. The string definition is the same as in step 3.
- 5. Specify the status of the jobs you want to display by clicking an option button in the **Job status** area.
  - All lists jobs that have any status.
  - All, except "Not Compiled" lists jobs with any status except Not Compiled.

- **Terminated normally** lists jobs with a status of Finished, Validated, Compiled, or Has been reset.
- **Terminated abnormally** lists jobs with a status of Aborted, Stopped, Failed validation, Finished (see log), or Validated (see log).
- 6. If you want to restrict the display to released jobs, select the **Include only released jobs** check box in the **Released jobs** area.
- 7. Click **OK** to activate the filter. The updated view displays the jobs that meet the filter criteria. The status bar indicates that the entries have been filtered.

#### **Examples of Filtering by Job Name**

The following examples show how to use the **Jobs Matching** field in the Filter Jobs dialog box to filter the Job Status view or the Job Schedule view.

#### Example 1

Job Names	"Include" Filter	Job View
job2input	job2*	job2input
job2output		job2output
job3input		
job3output		

#### Example 2

Continuing Example 1, if you also specify **\*input** as an "Exclude" filter, the Job Status view shows only job2output.

DataStage Operator's Guide

#### Example 3

Job Names	"Include" Filter	Job View
A3tires	[A-E]3*	A3tires
A3valves		A3valves
B3tires		B3tires
B3valves		B3valves
F3tires		
F3valves		

# **Finding Text**

If there are many entries in the display area, you can use **Find** to search for a particular job or event. You start **Find** in one of three ways:

- Choose **Search ➤ Find**.
- Choose **Find** from the shortcut menu.
- Click the **Find** icon on the toolbar.

The Find dialog box appears:

Find		×
Find What:		Find <u>N</u> ext
Direction	Cancel	
		<u>H</u> elp

To use Find:

1. Enter text in the **Find What** field. This could be a date, time, status, or the name of a job.

**Note:** If the text entered matches any portion of the text in any column, this constitutes a match.

- 2. If the displayed entry must match the case of the text you entered, select the **Match Case** check box. The default setting is unchecked.
- 3. Choose the search direction by clicking the **Up** or **Down** option button. The default setting is **Down**.

DataStage Director

- 4. Click **Find Next**. The display columns are searched to find the entered text. The first occurrence of the text is highlighted in the display. The text can appear in any column or row of the display area.
- 5. Click **Find Next** again to search for the next occurrence of the text.
- 6. Click **Cancel** to close the Find dialog box.
- Note: You can also use Search ➤ Find Next to search for an entry in the display. If there is a search string in the Find dialog box, Find Next acts in the same way as the Find Next button on the Find dialog box. If there is no search string in the Find dialog box, this option displays the Find dialog box where you must enter a search string.

# **Sorting Columns**

You can organize the entries in the display area by sorting the columns in ascending or descending order. The column currently being used for sorting is indicated by a symbol in the column title:

- > indicates the sort is in ascending order.
- < indicates the sort is in descending order.

To sort a column do any one of the following:

- Click the column title. The sort toggles between ascending and descending.
- Click the Ascending or Descending icon on the toolbar.
- Choose View > Ascending or View > Descending.

If you choose a column that contains a date or a time, both the date and time columns are sorted together.

# **Printing the Current View**

You can print information from the current view. The content of the printout depends on the view you are using and the options you choose in the Print dialog box. To print the current view:

- 1. Do one of the following to display the Print dialog box:
  - Choose **Project ➤ Print...**.
  - Click the **Print** icon on the toolbar.



This dialog box contains the name of the printer to use. By default, this is the default Windows printer. For information on how to specify an alternative printer, see "Changing the Printer Setup" on page 2-16.

- 2. Choose the range of items to print by clicking an appropriate option button in the **Range** area:
  - All entries prints all entries in the current view.
  - **Current page** prints all entries visible in the display area for the current view.
  - Current item prints the selected item only.
- 3. Choose what to print by clicking an appropriate option button in the **Print** what area:
  - Summary only prints a summary for each item.
  - Full details prints detailed information for each item.
- 4. Specify the print quality to use by choosing an appropriate setting from the **Print quality** drop-down list box:
  - **High** (the default setting)
  - Medium
  - Low
  - Draft

Note: This setting is ignored if Print to file is selected.

- 5. Select the **Print to file** check box if you want to print to a file only.
- 6. Click **OK**. If you are printing to file, the Print to file dialog box appears. Enter the name of a text file to use. The default is *DSDirect.txt* in the *Ardent*\*DataStage* directory.

DataStage Director

#### What Is in the Printout

The content of the printout depends on the view you are using:

- For the Job Status view, the printout contains the current status for each job in the project, and the date and time the job was last run.
- For the Job Schedule view, the printout contains an entry for each scheduled job in the project specifying when the job is scheduled to run.
- For the Job Log view, the printout can include information about each event in the job log file. For more information about the job log file, see Chapter 6.

## **Changing the Printer Setup**

Printouts from the Director are normally output to the default Windows printer. To choose an alternative printer or specify other printer settings:

1. Choose **Project** ➤ **Print Setup**.... The Print Setup dialog box appears. (This dialog box is also displayed if you click **Setup**... in the Print dialog box.)

Print Setup			? ×
Printer —			
<u>N</u> ame:	\\MK32\FullPostscript		<u>P</u> roperties
Status:	Ready		
Type:	HP LaserJet 4/4M Plus PS 600		
Where:	Computer Room		
Comment:	Laserjet 4		
- Paper		_ Orientation	n
Size:	A4 💌		Portrait
<u>S</u> ource:	Automatically Select	<b>1</b>	O L <u>a</u> ndscape
Net <u>w</u> ork		OK	Cancel

- 2. Change any of the settings as required or choose a different printer.
- 3. Click **OK** to save the settings and to close the dialog box.

# **Director Options**

When you start the DataStage Director, the current settings for the Director options determine what is displayed in the DataStage Director window. The settings include:

- The DataStage Director window position and size
- The time interval between updates from the server
- The number of data rows processed before a job is stopped
- The number of unexpected warnings that are permitted before a job is aborted
- Whether the toolbar, status bar, or icons are displayed
- The filter criteria
- Tracing levels for a chosen job
- The process priority level for the DataStage Director

You can modify the settings for the Director options by choosing **Tools** ➤ **Options...** . The Options dialog box appears:

Options	×
<u>G</u> eneral Limits View Tracing Pr	iority
Refresh	Save on exit
Every 04 뢎 seconds	<ul> <li>✓ Main window size and position</li> <li>✓ Filter settings</li> </ul>
	Compare client and server system times
ŌK	Cancel <u>H</u> elp

The five pages in the dialog box are described in the following sections.

#### **General Page**

From the **General** page you can:

- Change the server update interval
- Save window settings
- Compare the client and server times

#### Changing the Server Update Interval

The **Refresh** area has a box labelled **Every** *n* **seconds**. This is the time, in seconds, between updates from the server. Click the arrow buttons to increase or decrease the value in the box. The default setting is 4, the minimum is 2, and the maximum is 65.

Note that if you choose a long refresh time, the status displayed in the DataStage Director window may not represent what is happening on the server. For example, if you start a run, the job status may not update to Running until a whole refresh interval has elapsed. Conversely, if you choose a refresh time that is too short, the DataStage Director requests information from the server at a rate that is too frequent and unproductive. You must find a value between these extremes that meets your update requirements.

#### **Saving Window Settings**

The **Save on exit** area contains two check boxes that determine the settings that are saved on exit from the DataStage Director.

- If **Main window size and position** is selected, the DataStage Director is restarted at the same screen coordinates as when it exited.
- If **Filter settings** is selected, the current filter settings are saved and used when the DataStage Director is started.

Both check boxes are selected by default.

#### **Comparing Client and Server Times**

If you select the **Compare client and server system times** check box, when the Director first attaches to a project, it checks that the system times on the client and the server are within five minutes of each other. If they are not, a warning message appears. This check box is selected by default.

#### **Limits Page**

The **Limits** page sets the maximum number of rows to process in a job run, and the maximum number of warning messages to allow before a job is aborted. The limits apply to all jobs in the current session. You can override the settings for an individual job when it is validated, run, or scheduled.

Options			×
General Limite	Court Tracing   Priorit		
	view   riacing   Enoug	21	1
- Rows			
🔿 No limit	Stop stages after	1000 A rows	
	0		
A de minere			
warnings			
○ No limit	Abort job after	50 🚖 warning	js 🛛
	OK	Cancel	<u>H</u> elp

#### Setting the Maximum Number of Rows

The option buttons set the maximum number of rows to be processed by the job. Click **No limit** to process all rows or **Stop stages after** *n* **rows** to specify a number of rows.

Enter a value 1 through 99999 or click the arrow buttons to increase or decrease the value. The default value is 1000.

#### Setting the Maximum Number of Warnings

The option buttons set the maximum number of warning messages allowed before a job is aborted. Select **No limit** to log all error messages or **Abort job after** to specify a number of warning messages. Enter a value 1 through 99999 or click the arrow buttons to increase or decrease the value. The default value is 50.

#### **View Page**

The options on the **View** page determine what is displayed in the DataStage Director window.

×
Priority
- Start with
Status of jobs
⊂ S <u>c</u> hedule
C Log for last job
Cancel <u>H</u> elp

The check boxes in the **Show** area are selected by default:

**Toolbar** Displays the toolbar.

**Status bar** Displays the status bar.

Date and time Displays the date and time (of the server) on the status bar.

**Icons** Displays the icons in the views.

Specify the view to display when the Director is started, by clicking the appropriate option button:

- **Status of jobs** (the default setting)
- Schedule
- Log for last job

#### **Tracing Page**

The **Tracing** page is included to help Ardent analysts during troubleshooting and appears only for compiled jobs.

The options on this page determine the amount of diagnostic information generated the next time a job is run. Diagnostic information is generated only for the active stages in a chosen job. To specify the job, highlight it in the Job Status or Job Schedule view before choosing **Tools**  $\triangleright$  **Options...**.

Options	×
General Limits View Tracing Prior	rity
Trace settings apply to the next	run of job DEMO only.
Stage names:	Trace level:
DEMO.FACTTAB.IDENT1	Report row data
DEMO.STAGEB	Eroperty values
	Subroutine calls
	<u>Apply</u> <u>Clear</u>
OK	Cancel <u>H</u> elp

The **Stage names** list box contains the names of the active stages in the job in the format *jobname.stagename*. To set a trace level, press **Ctrl-Alt** and click to highlight stages in the **Stage names** list box, then select any of the following check boxes:

- **Report row data**. Records an entry for every data row read on input and written on output. This check box is cleared by default.
- **Property values**. Records an entry for every input and output opened and closed. This check box is cleared by default.
- **Subroutine calls**. Records an entry for every BASIC subroutine used. This check box is cleared by default.

Click **Apply** to set these options for the chosen stage. To clear options for a stage, highlight it in the **Stage names** list box and click **Clear**.

The next time the job is run, a file is created for each active stage in the job. The files are named using the format *jobname.stagename.trace* and are stored in the &PH& subdirectory of your DataStage server installation directory. If you need to view

DataStage Director

the content of these files, contact your local Ardent Customer Support center for assistance.

### **Priority Page**

The **Priority** page is included for sites where the DataStage client and server components are installed on the same computer. When jobs are running, the performance of the DataStage Director may be noticeably slower. You can improve the performance by changing the priority of the DataStage Director process.

Options	×
<u>G</u> eneral Limits <u>V</u> iew T <u>r</u> acing <u>Prio</u>	ity
Set process priority	Current state
C <u>H</u> igh always	Process priority is: Normal
<ul> <li>High if project <u>on local system</u> (MK35)</li> </ul>	Project on system:
C Normal always	mk70
OK	Cancel <u>H</u> elp

#### **Setting the Process Priority**

The option buttons in the **Set process priority** area allow you to change the priority of the DataStage Director process.

- Click **High always** to increase the priority of the DataStage Director, regardless of where the client and server components are installed. Note that if you choose this option and the client and server components are installed on different computers, you may not see an improvement in the performance of the DataStage Director.
- Click **High if project on local system** to increase the priority of the DataStage Director process if the client and server components reside on the same machine. This is the default setting.
- Click **Normal always** if you do not want to change the priority setting for the DataStage Director process.

#### **Displaying the Current State**

The Current state area displays the current priority setting.

**Note:** If you choose a high priority setting, it may take longer for a job to run. This is because processor cycles are directed toward monitoring jobs rather than running them.

Click **OK** to save the settings. Settings on the **Tracing** page are applied to the next run of the specified job, whenever it occurs.

# **Choosing an Alternative Project**

When you start the DataStage Director, the project chosen in the Attach to Project dialog box is opened. You can view the jobs in another DataStage project without exiting the DataStage Director.

#### **Viewing Jobs in Another Project**

To view the jobs in another project:

- 1. Do one of the following to display the Open Project dialog box:
  - Choose **Project ➤ Open...**.
  - Click the Open Project icon on the toolbar.

Open Project		×
Host system:	mk35	ОК
Projects:	dstage Project2	Cancel
		<u>N</u> ew host
		<u>H</u> elp

- 2. Choose the project you want to open from the **Projects** list box. This list box contains all the DataStage projects on the server specified in the **Host system** field, which is the server you initially attached to.
- 3. Click **OK** to open the chosen project. The updated DataStage Director window displays the jobs in the new project.

DataStage Director

#### Viewing Jobs on a Different Server

To open a project on a different DataStage server:

- 1. Click New host.... The Attach to Project dialog box appears.
- 2. Enter the name of the DataStage server and your logon details before choosing the project from the **Projects** drop-down list.
- 3. Click **OK** to open the chosen project. The updated DataStage Director window displays the jobs in the new project.
- **Note:** If you have Monitor windows open when you choose an alternative project, you are prompted to confirm that you want to change projects. If you click **Yes**, the Monitor windows are closed before the new project is opened. See Chapter 5, "Monitoring Jobs," for more details.

# **Exiting the DataStage Director**

To exit the Director, choose **Project**  $\succ$  **Exit**. Any open windows (for example, Monitor windows) are automatically closed on exit.

DataStage Operator's Guide
# **3** Running DataStage Jobs

This chapter describes how to run DataStage jobs, including the following topics:

- · Setting job options
- Validating jobs
- Starting, stopping, and resetting a job run
- Deleting jobs from a project
- Cleaning up the resources of jobs that have hung or aborted

These tasks are performed from the Job Status view in the DataStage Director window. To switch to this view, choose **View ➤ Status**, or click the **Status** icon on the toolbar.

#### **Setting Job Options**

Each time you validate, run, or schedule a job you can:

- Change the job parameters associated with the job, as appropriate
- Override any default limits for row processing and warning messages that are set for the job run

You do this from the Job Run Options dialog box which appears automatically when you run, validate, or schedule a job.

DEMO - Job Run	Options	×
arameters Limits		
lame	Value 🔼	
nter the File Name	*******	
Start of Week Date	******	
		Set to <u>D</u> efault
		All to Default
		Broportu Holp
	<u> </u>	
	Bun Validate Cancel	Help
	DEMO - Job Run Parameters Limits Name Inter the File Name Start of Week Date	DEM0 - Job Run Options     Parameters     Limits     Name   Value     Inter the File Name     Start of Week Date     ************************************

Some parameters have default values assigned to them. You can use the default or enter another value. You can reinstate the default values by clicking **Set to Default** or **All to Default**. In the example screen, the default values are encrypted strings which are shown as asterisks.

Some job parameters hold variable information such as dates or file names that you need to enter for each job run. You must enter appropriate values in all the fields before you can continue.

If the job's designer included help text for the job parameters, you can get help by selecting the parameter and clicking **Property Help**.

# Validating a Job

You can check that a job will run successfully by validating it. Jobs should be validated before running them for the first time, or after making any significant changes to job parameters.

When a job is validated, the following checks are made without actually extracting, converting, or writing data:

- Connections are made to the data sources or data warehouse.
- SQL SELECT statements are prepared.

• Files are opened. Intermediate files in Hashed, UniVerse, or ODBC stages that use the local data source are created, if they do not already exist.

To validate a job:

- 1. Select the job you want to validate in the Job Status view.
- 2. Choose Job ➤ Validate.... The Job Run Options dialog box appears. See "Setting Job Options" on page 3-1.
- 3. Fill in the job parameters and check warning and row limits for the job, as appropriate.
- 4. Click **Validate**. Click **OK** to acknowledge the message. The job is validated and the job's status is updated to Running.
- **Note:** It may take some time for the job status to be updated, depending on the load on the server and the refresh rate for the client.

Once validation is complete, the job's status updates to display one of these status messages:

- Validated OK. You can now schedule or run the job.
- Failed validation. You need to view the job log file for details of where the validation failed. For more details, see Chapter 6, "The Job Log File."

If you want to monitor the validation in progress, you can use a Monitor window. For more information, see Chapter 5, "Monitoring Jobs."

#### **Running a Job**

You can run a job in two ways:

- Immediately.
- By scheduling it to run at a later time or date. See "Job Scheduling" on page 3-5 for how to do this.

If you run a job immediately, you must ensure that the data sources and data warehouse are accessible, and that other users on your system will not be affected by the job run.

To run a job immediately:

1. Select the job in the Job Status view.

Running DataStage Jobs

- 2. Do one of the following:
  - Choose Job ➤ Run Now....
  - Click the **Run** icon on the toolbar.

The Job Run Options dialog box appears. See "Setting Job Options" on page 3-1.

- 3. Fill in the job parameters and check warning and row limits for the job, as appropriate.
- 4. Optionally, click Validate to validate the job.
- 5. Click **Run**. The job is scheduled to run with the current date and time and the job's status is updated to Running.
- **Note:** It may take some time for the job status to be updated, depending on the load on the server and the refresh rate for the client.

#### **Stopping a Job**

To stop a job that is currently running:

- 1. Select it in the Job Status view.
- 2. Do one of the following:
  - Choose **Job** ➤ **Stop**.
  - Click the **Stop** icon on the toolbar.

The job is stopped, regardless of the stage currently being processed, and the job's status is updated to Stopped.

**Note:** It may take some time for the job status to be updated, depending on the load on the server and the refresh rate for the client.

#### **Resetting a Job**

If a job is stopped or aborted, it is difficult to determine whether all the required data was written to the target data tables. When a job has a status of Stopped or Aborted, you must reset it before running the job again.

By resetting a job, you set it back to a runnable state and, optionally, return your target files to the state they were in before the job was run.

Note: You can only reinstate sequential files and hashed files to a prerun state.

If you want to undo the updates performed during a successful job, you can also use the **Reset** option for jobs with a status of Finished. The **Reset** option is not available for jobs with a status of Not compiled or Running.

To reset a job:

- 1. Select the job you want to reset in the Job Status view.
- 2. Choose **Job** ➤ **Reset**. A message box appears.
- 3. Click **Yes** to reset the tables. All the files in the job are reinstated to the state they were in before the job was run. The job's status is updated to Has been reset.
- **Note:** It may take some time for the job status to be updated, depending on the load on the server and the refresh rate for the client.

#### **Job Scheduling**

You can schedule a job to run in a number of ways:

- Once today at a specified time
- Once tomorrow at a specified time
- On a specific day and at a particular time
- Daily at a particular time
- On the next occurrence of a particular date and time

Each job can be scheduled to run on any number of occasions, using different job parameters if necessary. The scheduled jobs are displayed in the Job Schedule view.

#### **Job Schedule View**

The Job Schedule view displays details of all scheduled and unscheduled jobs and batches. To display the job schedule, choose **View ➤ Schedule** or click the **Schedule** icon on the toolbar.

🛃 DataStage I	Director - MyStore(mk70	)]		
<u>P</u> roject <u>V</u> iew	<u>S</u> earch <u>J</u> ob <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp	)		
<b>e</b>	0 💷 🎮 🔳 👪		<u>&gt;</u>	
>Job name	To be run	At time	Parameters / Description	
<b>OEMO</b>	Every F&31	02:00		
Example1	(Not scheduled)	00.00		
senduo	Next 20 (Not scheduled)	06:00		
StockMerge	(Not scheduled)			
<u> </u>				
Job schedule: 5	entries		Server tim	e: 20/12/96 11:27 🦽

The **Job name** column lists the jobs. By default this is all the jobs that are available, but you can filter the view to display specific categories of job. See "Filtering the Job Status or Job Schedule View" on page 2-10. The icon on the left indicates whether the jobs are scheduled.

The **To be run** column shows when the job is scheduled to run, as shown in the following table:

To be run	Means this
Every n	<i>n</i> is a number representing the date. For example, Every 12&27 means the job is scheduled to run on the 12th and 27th day of each month.
Every <i>x</i>	<i>x</i> represents the day of the week:
	For example, Every Th&F means the job is scheduled to run every Thursday and Friday.
Every <i>n</i> & <i>x</i>	<i>n</i> is a date and <i>x</i> is a day of the week (as above). For example, Every 10&Su means the job is scheduled to run on every 10th day of the month and every Sunday.

To be run	Means this
Today	The job is run today at the specified time.
Tomorrow	The job will run tomorrow at the specified time.
Next n	<i>n</i> is a date (as above). For example, Next 28 means the job is run on the next 28th of the month.
Next <i>x</i>	<i>x</i> is a day of the week. For example, Next W means the job is run the next Wednesday in the month.
Next <i>n</i> & <i>x</i>	<i>n</i> is a number and <i>x</i> is a day of the week. For example, Next 5&12&T means the job is scheduled to run on the next 5th and 12th day of the month, and the next Tuesday.

The **At time** column lists the time at which the job will run. This is displayed in the system's current time format: 12-hour or 24-hour clock.

The **Parameters/Description** column lists the parameters required to run the job. Each job has built-in job parameters which must be entered when you schedule or run a job. The entered values are displayed in this column in the following format:

parameter1 name = value, parameter2 name = value, ...

A brief description appears here if there is a short description defined and there are no job parameters.

#### Viewing Details of a Job Schedule

To view more details about a scheduled job or batch, select it in the display area and do one of the following:

- Choose View ➤ Detail.
- Choose **Detail** from the shortcut menu.
- Double-click the job or batch in the display.

If you choose a batch, it has the same effect as choosing **Tools** > **Batch**..., as described in "Creating a Job Batch" on page 4-1.

If you choose a job, the Job Schedule Detail window appears:

🗮 Job Sche	dule Detail				_ 🗆 ×
Project:	MyStore (mk70)	Job name:	DEMO		Close
Schedule #:	11	Run time:	03:00		Next
Occurrences:	Repeats	Run date:	Every F&31		Provious
Job parameter	s:				Flexings
Parameter1=9	TOREA				<u>С</u> ору
Parameter2=0	)/ Jan 9/				<u>H</u> elp
				$\overline{}$	

This window contains a summary of the job details and all the settings used to schedule the job.

This field	Contains this information
Project	The name of the project and the DataStage server.
Schedule #	The schedule number the job has been assigned.
Occurrences	The number of times the job will be run using this schedule. A value of Repeats means that the job is continuously rescheduled.
Job name	The name of the job.
Run time	The time the job is set to run, in 24-hour format.
Run date	The date the job is set to run.
Job parameters	The job parameters. Each entry in this field is in the format <i>parameter name=value</i> .

**Note:** The parameter name displayed here is the name used internally by the job, not the descriptive parameter name you see when you enter job parameter values.

You can use **Copy** to copy the schedule details and job parameters to the Clipboard for use elsewhere.

Click **Next** or **Previous** to display schedule details for the next or previous job in the list. Note that these buttons are only active if the next or previous job is scheduled to run.

Click **Close** to close the window.

#### Scheduling a Job

To schedule a job:

1. Select the job you want to schedule in the Job Status or Job Schedule view.

Note: You cannot schedule a job with a status of Not compiled.

- 2. Do one of the following to display the Add to schedule dialog box:
  - Choose Job ➤ Add to Schedule....
  - Choose Add To Schedule... from the appropriate shortcut menu.
  - Click the **Schedule** icon on the toolbar.

DEMO - Add to sched	ule	×
🕞 Run Job ———	- Day	Time
○ <u>I</u> oday	Mon	
C Tomorrow	Tue 123456 Wed 89101112131	7 02:00 🖨
	Thu 1516171819202	<u>л</u> с <u>а</u> м
O <u>N</u> ext	Fri 22 23 24 25 26 27 2 Sat 29 30 31	<u>а</u> с <u>р</u> м
○ <u>D</u> aily	Sun	
	OK Can	cel <u>H</u> elp

3. Choose when to run the job by clicking the appropriate option button:

Today runs the job today at the specified time (in the future).

Tomorrow runs the job tomorrow at the specified time.

**Every** runs the job on the chosen day or date at the specified time in this month and repeats the run at the same date and time in the following months.

**Next** runs the job on the next occurrence of the day or date at the specified time.

Daily runs the job every day at the specified time.

- 4. If you selected **Every** or **Next** in step 3, choose the day to run the job by doing one of the following:
  - Choose an appropriate day or days from the Day list.
  - Choose a date from the calendar.

Running DataStage Jobs

- **Note:** If you choose an invalid date, for example, 31 September, the behavior of the scheduler depends upon the server operating system, and you may not receive a warning of the invalid date. Refer to your server documentation for further information.
- 5. Choose the time to run the job. There are two time formats:
  - 12-hour clock. Click either AM or PM.
  - 24-hour clock. Click 24H Clock.

Click the arrow buttons to increase or decrease the hours and minutes, or enter the values directly.

- 6. Click **OK**. The Add to schedule dialog box closes and the Job Run Options dialog box appears.
- 7. Fill in the job parameter fields and check warning and row limits, as appropriate.
- 8. Click **Schedule**. The job is scheduled to run and is added to the Job Schedule view.

#### **Unscheduling a Job**

If you want to prevent a job from running at the scheduled time, you must unschedule it. To unschedule a job:

- 1. Select the job you want to unschedule in the Job Schedule view.
- 2. Do one of the following:
  - Choose **Job** ➤ **Unschedule**.
  - Choose **Unschedule** from the shortcut menu.

If the job is not scheduled to run at another time, the job status is updated to Not scheduled in the **To be run** column, and is not run again until you add it to the schedule.

#### **Rescheduling a Job**

If you have a job scheduled to run, but you want to change the frequency, day, or time it is run, you can reschedule it. To reschedule a job:

- 1. Select the job you want to reschedule in the Job Schedule view.
- 2. Do one of the following to display the Add to schedule dialog box:
  - Choose Job > Reschedule....

- Choose **Reschedule**... from the shortcut menu.
- Click the **Reschedule** icon on the toolbar.

The current settings for the job are shown in the dialog box.

- 3. Edit the frequency, day, or time you want the job to run.
- 4. Click **OK**. The Add to schedule dialog box closes and the Job Run Options dialog box appears.
- 5. Fill in the job parameters and check warning and row limits as appropriate.
- 6. Click **Reschedule**. The job is rescheduled and the **To be run** column in the Job Schedule view is updated.

#### **Deleting a Job**

You can remove unwanted or old versions of jobs from your project as follows:

- 1. Select the job in the Job Status view.
- 2. Choose **Job** ➤ **Delete**. A message confirms that you want to delete the chosen job.
- 3. Click **Yes** to delete the job. A message confirms the job has been deleted.
- 4. Click **OK**. The job and all the associated components used at run time are deleted, including the files and records used by the Job Log view and the Monitor window.
- 5. If the job you deleted is part of a batch, edit the batch to remove the deleted job to prevent the batch from failing. See Chapter 4, "Job Batches."

#### **Job Administration**

From the DataStage Administration client, the administrator can enable job administration options that let you clean up the resources of a job that has hung or aborted. These options help you return the job to a state in which you can rerun it after the cause of the problem has been fixed. You should use them with care, and only after you have tried to reset the job and you are sure it has hung or aborted.

There are two job administration options:

- Cleanup Resources
- Clear Status File

#### **Cleaning Up Job Resources**

The **Cleanup Resources** option lets you:

- View and end job processes
- View and release the associated locks

To start this option, do one of the following:

- Choose **Job** > Cleanup Resources from the menu bar.
- Choose Cleanup Resources from the Monitor window shortcut menu.

The Job Resources dialog box appears, from which you can view and clean up the resources of the selected job:

24	Job Reso	ources - proctest			×
Г	Processes-				
	PID #	Context	User Name	Last Command Processed	<u><u>C</u>lose</u>
	139 165	Controller DSTransformer3 (Runni	ARDENT\smith ARDENT\smith	PHANTOM DSD.StageRun 40 SELECT DS_JOBS WITH JOB	procl NO = <u>R</u> efresh
					<u>H</u> elp
	•				Þ
	C Show A	II 💿 Show by job		Logout <u>A</u> ll Logou	ıt
	Locks				
	PID/User	# Lock Type	Item Id		
	139	Record Record	dstage&!DS.ADMIN RT_CONFIG39	11&	
	· · ·				
	O Show A	Ⅱ	row by process	R <u>e</u> lease	All

In the **Processes** area:

This column	Displays this information
PID #	The process identification number.
Context	The process context. In a job with more than one active stage, a PID may be reused during a job run. In that case the context field may have entries for more than one active stage. The context will always be listed as Unavailable if the <b>Show All</b> option button is selected.
User Name	The identity of the user whose job started the process.
Last Command Processed	The command executed most recently by the process.
In the <b>Locks</b> area:	

This column	Displays this information
PID/User #	The identification number of the process associated with the lock.
Lock Type	The type of lock: File, Record, or Group.
Item Id	The identity of the item (record) locked by the process. For a Group lock, this column is left blank.

#### **Viewing Processes and Locks**

The default is for the Job Resources dialog box to display all the processes and locks associated with the job currently selected in the DataStage Director. You can, however, filter the display by using the option buttons in the **Processes** and **Locks** areas of the Job Resources dialog box.

In the **Processes** area:

- Show All displays all current DataStage processes.
- Show by job (the default) displays all processes for the selected job.

In the Locks area:

- Show All displays all the current locks.
- Show by job (the default) displays all locks for the selected job.
- Show by process displays all the locks associated with the process that you have selected in the **Processes** area in the Job Resources dialog box.

#### **Ending Job Processes**

To end job processes:

- 1. From the Job Resources dialog box, choose the range of processes to list by using the **Show All** or **Show by job** option buttons in the **Processes** area.
- 2. To end all the processes associated with a job, click **Logout All**. (This button is disabled if you have clicked the **Show All** option button.)

To end a particular process, select the process in the **Processes** list box, then click **Logout**.

3. Wait for the processes to end (log out) and the display to update.

You can refresh the display manually at any time by clicking **Refresh**.

If this procedure fails to end a process that you believe is causing a job to hang, try the following steps:

- 1. Log out of all DataStage clients.
- 2. Try to end the process using the Windows NT Task Manager or kill the process in UNIX.
- 3. Stop and restart the UniVerse service.
- 4. Reset the job from the DataStage Director (see "Resetting a Job" on page 3-4).

If there is a problem with a job, you can also release locks (see the next section), or clear the job status file (see "Clearing a Job Status File" on page 3-15).

#### **Releasing Locks**

To release locks:

1. From the Job Resources dialog box, choose the range of locks to list either by clicking the **Show by job** option button in the **Locks** area or by selecting a process in the **Processes** area, then clicking the **Show by process** option button.

**Note:** You cannot release locks if you have clicked the **Show All** option button in the **Locks** area.

2. Click **Release All**. Each of the displayed locks is unlocked and the display updates automatically. (You cannot select or release individual locks.)

You can refresh the display manually at any time by clicking Refresh.

#### **Clearing a Job Status File**

When you clear a job's status file you reset the status records associated with all stages in that job. You should therefore use this option with great care, and only when you believe a job has hung or aborted. In particular, before you clear a status file you should:

- Try to reset the job (see "Resetting a Job" on page 3-4).
- Ensure that all the job's processes have ended (see "Ending Job Processes" on page 3-14).

To clear the job status file, choose **Job ➤ Clear Status File** from the menu bar.

The job status changes to Compiled and no evidence will remain that the job has ever run.

# 4 Job Batches

This chapter describes how to create and run DataStage job batches, including the following topics:

- What is a job batch?
- · Creating and running job batches
- Scheduling, unscheduling and rescheduling job batches
- Deleting batches from a project

#### What Is a Job Batch?

A job batch is a group of jobs or separate instances of the same job (with different job parameters) that you want to run sequentially. DataStage treats a batch as though it were a single job. If any job fails to complete successfully, the batch run stops. You can follow the progress of jobs within a batch by examining the log files of each job or of the batch itself. These contain messages about the progress of the batch, as well as the job. You can create, schedule, edit, or delete job batches.

#### **Creating a Job Batch**

To create a job batch:

1. Choose **Tools**  $\succ$  **Batch**  $\succ$  **New...**. The New Batch dialog box appears.

2. Enter a name for the new batch in the **Batch name** field and click **OK**. The Job Properties dialog box appears:

🎥 Batch::Friday - Job	Properties				_ 🗆 🗵
<u>G</u> eneral <u>P</u> arameters	Job control	]			
X 🖻 🛍 🤼	Ē	<u>A</u> dd Job :	(none)		•
					<u></u>
					<b>_</b>
		Oł		Cancel	<u>H</u> elp

- 3. Select the jobs to add to the batch from the **Add Job** list on the **Job control** page. This list displays all the jobs in the project. You are prompted to enter parameter values, and row and warning limits for each job in the batch. As each job is added to the batch, the control information is added to the **Job control** page.
- 4. Click the **General** tab. The **General** page appears at the front of the Job Properties dialog box. Optionally, enter a brief description of the batch in the **Short job description** field. This description appears in the **Parameters/Description** column in the Job Schedule view.
- 5. Optionally, enter a more detailed description of the batch in the **Full job description** field.

- 6. Click the **Parameters** tab. The **Parameters** page appears at the front of the Job Properties dialog box.
- 7. Define any parameters that you want to specify for the batch. For example, a user name and password to prompt for when the batch is run.
- 8. When you have defined the batch, click **OK**. The batch is compiled and appears in the Job Status view.

#### **Running a Job Batch**

You can run a job batch in the same way as a standard job:

- Immediately.
- By scheduling it to run at a later time or date. See "Scheduling a Job Batch" for how to do this.

If you run a batch immediately, you must ensure that the data sources and data warehouse are accessible, and that other users on your system will not be affected by the job run.

To run a batch immediately:

- 1. Select the batch in the Job Status view.
- 2. Do one of the following:
  - Choose Job ➤ Run Now....
  - Click the **Run** icon on the toolbar.

The Job Run Options dialog box appears. See "Setting Job Options" on page 3-1.

- 3. Fill in the job parameters and check warning and row limits for the batch, as appropriate.
- 4. Optionally, click Validate to validate the job.
- 5. Click **Run**. The batch is started and its status is updated to Running.
- **Note:** It may take some time for the job status to be updated, depending on the load on the server and the refresh rate for the client.

# Scheduling a Job Batch

To schedule a batch:

- 1. Display the Job Schedule view. Job batches are displayed in the Job Schedule view in the format Batch::*batchname. batchname* is the name entered when the batch was created.
- 2. Select the batch in the list and do one of the following to display the Add to schedule dialog box:
  - Choose Job ➤ Add to Schedule....
  - Choose Add To Schedule... from the shortcut menu.
  - Click the **Schedule** icon on the toolbar.

Batch::batch1 - Add t	o schedule		×
- Run Job	– Day —		Time
	Mon	December	
C Tomorrow	Tue	1234567	12 : 00 🌻
	Wed	8 9 10 11 12 13 14	
C Every	Thu	15 16 17 18 19 20 21	
C <u>N</u> ext	Fri		<u>О Р</u> М
○ <u>D</u> aily	Sun		24H clock 1
		OK Cancel	Help
	_		

3. Choose when to run the batch by clicking the appropriate option button:

Today runs the batch today at the specified time (in the future).

Tomorrow runs the batch tomorrow at the specified time.

**Every** runs the batch on the chosen day or date at the specified time in this month and repeats the run at the same date and time in the following months.

**Next** runs the batch on the next occurrence of the day or date at the specified time.

Daily runs the batch every day at the specified time.

4. If you selected **Every** or **Next** in step 3, choose the day to run the batch from the **Day** list or a date from the calendar.

**Note:** If you choose an invalid date, for example, 31 September, the behavior of the scheduler depends upon the server operating system, and you

may not receive a warning of the invalid date. Refer to your server documentation for further information.

- 5. In the **Time** area, select one option from **AM**, **PM**, or **24H Clock**. Then click the arrow buttons to increase or decrease the hours and minutes, or enter the values directly.
- 6. Click **OK**. The Add to schedule dialog box closes and the Job Run Options dialog box appears.
- 7. Click **Schedule**. The batch is scheduled to run and is added to the Job Schedule view. The job parameters entered when the batch was created are used when the batch is run.

### **Unscheduling a Job Batch**

If you want to prevent a batch from running at the scheduled time, you must unschedule it. To unschedule a batch, select the batch in the Job Schedule view and do one of the following:

- Choose Job ➤ Unschedule.
- Choose Unschedule from the shortcut menu.

The batch status is updated to Not scheduled in the **To be run** column and is not run again until you schedule it again.

## **Rescheduling a Job Batch**

If you have a batch scheduled to run, but you want to change the frequency, day, or time it is run, you can reschedule it. To reschedule a batch:

- 1. Select the batch in the Job Schedule view and do one of the following:
  - Choose Job ➤ Reschedule....
  - Choose Reschedule... from the shortcut menu.
  - Click the **Reschedule** icon on the toolbar.

The Add to schedule dialog box appears with the current settings for the batch.

- 2. Edit the frequency, day, or time you want the batch to run.
- 3. Click **OK**. The Add to schedule dialog box closes, the batch is rescheduled, and the **To be run** column in the Job Schedule view is updated.

## **Job Schedule Errors**

If you get an error when you try to schedule jobs, ask your system administrator to check that:

- The Windows NT Schedule service is running on the server (see *DataStage Administrator's Guide*).
- You belong to a Windows NT group that has permission to use the Schedule service.

### **Editing a Job Batch**

To add or remove jobs from a job batch or change any job parameters, you must edit the job batch.

Note: Do not edit a job batch while it is running.

To edit a job batch:

- 1. Select the batch and choose **Tools** ➤ **Batch...** ➤ **Properties**. The Job Properties dialog box appears.
- 2. Add further jobs by selecting them in the **Add Job** list, or remove jobs from the batch by selecting them in the **Job control** page and using the **Cut** button or the **Delete** key.
- 3. Click the **General** tab and edit the batch description, if required.
- 4. Click the **Parameters** page and edit the batch parameters, if required.
- 5. Click **OK** to save the edits.

#### **Copying a Job Batch**

To copy a job batch:

- 1. In the Job Status view, select the batch and choose **Tools** ➤ **Batch...** ➤ **Save As**. The Save As New Batch dialog box appears.
- 2. Enter the name for the new copy of the batch.
- 3. Click **OK** to copy the batch.

# **Deleting a Job Batch**

If you do not need a job batch, you can delete it. To delete a job batch:

- 1. Select the batch in the Job Status view.
- 2. Choose **Tools ➤ Batch... ➤ Delete**. A message appears asking you to confirm the deletion.
- 3. Click **Yes** to delete the batch.

# 5 Monitoring Jobs

This chapter describes how to monitor running jobs using the **Monitor** option. Processing details that occur at each active stage of the job are displayed in a Monitor window. These details include:

- The name of the stages performing the processing
- The status of each stage
- The number of rows processed
- The time taken to complete each stage

#### **The Monitor Window**

To display a Monitor window, select a job in the Job Status view and do one of the following:

- Choose **Tools** ➤ **New Monitor**.
- Choose **Monitor** from the shortcut menu.

🚰 DataStage	Director Mon	tor - DEMO				
Stage name	Status	Num rows	Started at	Elapsed time	Rows/sec	Claure 1
FACTTAB	Waiting	0				Liose
STAGEA	Running	0	14:24:01	00:00:03		Hala
STAGEB	Running	1000	14:23:57	00:00:07	142	
						Interval 10 ♥
Job: DEMO	Status: Run	ning	Proje	ect: MyStore (m	k70)	Server time: 14:24

By default, this window displays summary information about the active stages in a job. The columns in the display are described in the following table:

This column	Contains thi	is information			
Stage name	The names of the active stages in the job. These are the stages that perform the processing (for example, Transformer stages). Stages that represent data sources or data ware- houses are not displayed in this window.				
Status	The status of	f each active stage. The possible states are:			
_	State Meaning				
	Aborted	The processing terminated abnormally at this stage.			
	Finished	All data has been processed by the stage.			
	Ready	The stage is ready to process the data.			
	Running	Data is being processed by the stage.			
	Starting	The processing is starting.			
	Stopped	The processing was stopped manually at this stage.			
	Waiting	The stage is waiting to start processing.			
Num Rows	The number of rows of data processed so far by each stage on its primary input.				
Started at	The time the processing started on the server.				
Elapsed time	The elapsed	time since processing started.			
Rows/sec	The number	of rows processed per second.			

The status bar at the bottom of the window displays the name and status of the job, the name of the project and the DataStage server, and the current time on the server.

#### Setting the Server Update Interval

The Monitor window display is updated with new information from the server at regular intervals. You can set how often the updates occur by setting a time (in seconds) in the **Interval** field. Click the arrow buttons to increase or decrease the value, or enter the value directly. The default setting is 10, the minimum is 5, and the maximum is 65.

#### **Saving Monitor Window Settings**

You can save the Monitor window size and position (and the Interval setting) by selecting the **Save settings** check box. These settings are used the next time you open a Monitor window for any job.

You can also save the window settings immediately by choosing **Save window** settings from the Monitor shortcut menu. If you want to clear any saved settings and return to the default values, choose **Clear window settings** from the shortcut menu.

# Showing Links

As well as the default Monitor window view, you can display link information for each active stage in a job. To show the links, choose **Show links** from the Monitor shortcut menu. The updated Monitor window displays the link information:

dataStage 🚰	Director Mo	nitor - DEMO						_ 🗆 ×
Stage name	Status	Link name	Туре	Num rows	Started at	Elapsed time	Rows/sec	
STAGEA	Running	INA	< <pri< td=""><td>4000</td><td>14:24:01</td><td>00:00:30</td><td>133</td><td>LIOSE</td></pri<>	4000	14:24:01	00:00:30	133	LIOSE
		UPCTOSKU	<ref< td=""><td>1602</td><td></td><td></td><td>53</td><td>Holp</td></ref<>	1602			53	Holp
		OUTA	>Out	1602			53	<u> </u>
		REJECTS	>Rej!	2398			79	
STAGEB	Running	INB	< <pri< td=""><td>3000</td><td>14:23:57</td><td>00:00:34</td><td>88</td><td>Internal 10</td></pri<>	3000	14:23:57	00:00:34	88	Internal 10
		SKUTOUPC	<ref< td=""><td>2910</td><td></td><td></td><td>85</td><td></td></ref<>	2910			85	
		OUTB	>Out	2910			85	<b>—</b> • • •
		REJECTS	>Rej!	90			2	<u>Save settings</u>
Job: DEMO	Status: Ru	unning		Pro	oject: MyStor	re (mk70)		Server time: 14:24

Each link to or from an active stage is represented by one row in the Monitor window. Primary input links are listed first, followed by other (reference) inputs, then outputs and rejects.

The link information is displayed in two additional columns in the Monitor window. **Link name** is the name of the link in the job design. **Type** displays the type of link. The types available are:

primary input link	< <pri< th=""></pri<>
input link	<ref< td=""></ref<>
output link	>Out
output link for rejected rows	>Rej!

The properties of the stage as a whole (stage status and the start and elapsed times) are displayed in the row for the primary input link. The order used to display the rows is determined by the server. If you try to reorder the columns, a message box appears. Click **OK** to close the message box.

To disable the link information, choose **Show links** from the shortcut menu again.

### **Showing CPU Usage**

While a stage is processing data rows, it can use a large portion of the CPU. You can use the Monitor window to check what percentage of the computer processor is being used by an active stage.

To show the percentage of CPU usage, choose **Show** %**CP** from the Monitor shortcut menu. The updated Monitor window includes the %**CP** column. The following screen shows the %**CP** column in the default Monitor window:

🛃 DataStage	DataStage Director Monitor - DEMO								
>Stage name	Status	Num rows	Started at	Elapsed time	Rows/sec	%CP			
FACTTAB	Waiting	0					Llose		
STAGEA	Running	12000	14:24:01	00:01:01	196	93	Halp		
STAGEB	Finished	5040	14:23:57	00:00:46	109				
							Interval 10 🖨		
Job: DEMO	Status: Run	ining		Project: MySt	ore (mk70)		Server time: 14:25		

The number displayed in the **%CP** column updates at regular intervals. The **%CP** column is empty if a stage is not processing data or has finished.

If several running stages share a process, only one of the stages displays a value in the %**CP** column; the other stages display the same value in parentheses.

**Note:** If you are viewing link information in a Monitor window, the percentage of computer processor time is displayed only in the row for the primary input link.

To hide the %**CP** column, choose **Show** %**CP** from the shortcut menu again.

# **Viewing and Cleaning Up Job Resources**

If the DataStage administrator has enabled job administration within the Director, you can view and clean up resources associated with the job being monitored. To do so, choose **Cleanup Resources** from the Monitor shortcut menu. The Job Resources window is displayed, from which you can:

- · View and end processes
- View and release locks

For full information about these options, refer to "Cleaning Up Job Resources" on page 3-12.

#### **Switching Between Monitor Windows**

You can display a Monitor window before you start the job or while a job is running. If you want to monitor more than one job at a time, you can display more than one Monitor window.

If you have several Monitor windows open, they can become hidden by other windows on the screen.

To bring a Monitor window to the front of the screen:

- 1. Choose **Tools ➤ View Monitor** > .
- 2. Select the job you want to view from the submenu.

#### The Stage Status Window

As well as viewing the information in the Monitor window, you can obtain more information about each stage from the Stage Status window. To display the Stage Status window, select a stage in the Monitor window and do one of the following:

- Choose **Detail** from the shortcut menu.
- Double-click the stage in the Monitor window.

The fields and parameters displayed in the Stage Status window depend on whether you are displaying the default Monitor window or link information when

you choose a stage. The following screen shows the Stage Status window from a default Monitor window:

Stage Status				×
Project:	MyStore (mk70)	Job name:	DEMO	Close
Stage:	STAGEA	Status:	Running	Сору
Started at:	1997-02-19 14:35:39	Row count:	5000	
Ended at:		Control:	0	
Retrieved:	1997-02-19 14:36:15	User:	-178	Wave #: 5

The fields in the window cannot be edited.

This field	Displays this information
Project	The name of the project and the DataStage server.
Stage	The name of the stage.
Started at	The date and time (on the server) the processing started at this stage.
Ended at	The date and time (on the server) the processing ended. This is set to 00:00:00 or is left blank if processing is still taking place.
Retrieved	The date and time (on the server) the stage retrieved the data to process.
Job name	The name of the job.
Status	The status of the stage. This is one of the states described earlier.
Row count	The number of rows processed.
Control	An internal number assigned by DataStage.
User	The name or process number of the user who ran the job.
Wave #	An internal number assigned by DataStage.

The following screen shows the Stage Status window if you are displaying link information:

Stage Status				×
Project:	MyStore (mk70)	Job name:	DEMO	Close
Stage.Link:	STAGEA.INA	Status:	Running	Сору
Started at:	1997-02-19 14:35:39	Row count:	11000	
Ended at:		Link type:	Primary	
Retrieved:	1997-02-19 14:36:39	User:	-178	Wave #: 5

The same fields described earlier are displayed in this window except:

- **Stage** is replaced by **Stage.Link**. This field contains the name of the stage followed by the name of the link.
- **Control** is replaced by **Link type**. This field contains the type of link. There are four possible settings:

Primary	A primary input link
Reference	A reference input link
Output	An output link
Reject	An output link marked as "Rejected Rows"

# 6 The Job Log File

This chapter describes the job log file and the Job Log view. The job log file is updated when you validate, run, or reset a job. You can use the log file to troubleshoot jobs that fail during validation, or that are aborted when they are run.

### Job Log View

A job's log file is displayed in the Job Log view. To display the log file, select the job in the Job Status view and choose **View**  $\geq$  **Log** or click the toolbar icon. The display is updated to list the job log file.

🛃 DataStag	e Director -	MyStore(	mk70)			
Project View	v <u>S</u> earch <u>J</u>	ob <u>T</u> ools	<u>H</u> elp			
28	0	<u>#</u>		36 ?		
>0ccurred	>On date	Туре	Event			<b>▲</b>
🕵 10:33:10	20/12/96	Info	DEMO.STAGEA: D	SD.StageRun Active	stage starting,	tracemode = 0.
🔯 10:33:10	20/12/96	Info	DEMO.STAGEB: D	SD.StageRun Active	stage starting,	tracemode = 0.
10:35:23	20/12/96	Reject	DEMO.STAGEB.RI	EJECTS: 90 Rows reje	ected.	
🔯 10:35:23	20/12/96	Info	DEMO.STAGEB: D	SD.StageRun Active	stage finishing.	. ()
10:35:56	20/12/96	Reject	DEMO.STAGEA.RI	EJECTS: 9090 Rows i	ejected.	
🕵 10:35:56	20/12/96	Info	DEMO.STAGEA: D	SD.StageRun Active	stage finishing.	. ()
🚳 10:35:56	20/12/96	Info	DEMO.FACTTAB.II	DENT1: DSD.StageR	un Active stage	e starting, tracemo
🔯 10:36:18	20/12/96	Info	DEMO.FACTTAB.II	DENT1: DSD.StageR	un Active stage	e finishing. ()
🔯 10:36:20	20/12/96	Control	Finished Datastage	Job DEMO.		
🔯 11:37:34	20/12/96	Control	Starting Datastage	Job DEMO.		
🐼 11:37:35	20/12/96	Info	DEMO.STAGEB: D	SD.StageRun Active	stage starting,	tracemode = 0. 📃
🐼 11:37:35	20/12/96	Info	DEMO.STAGEA: D	SD.StageRun Active	stage starting,	tracemode = 0. 🛛 💌
•						
Log for job: D	EMO		53 entries		Server time:	20/12/96 11:39

Each log file contains entries describing events that occurred during the last (or previous) runs of the job.

The Job Log File

Entries are written to the log when:

- The job starts
- The job finishes
- A stage starts
- A stage finishes
- Rejected rows are output
- Errors are generated
- A scheduled job starts or a batch starts or finishes

The four columns in the Job Log view are described in the following table:

This column	contains this				
Occurred	The time the e	vent occurred.			
On date	The date the e	vent occurred.			
Туре	The type of ev	The type of event:			
	This event Occurs when				
	Info	Stages start and finish. No action required.			
	Warning	An error occurred. You may need to investi- gate the cause of the warning, as this may cause the job to abort.			
	Fatal	A fatal error occurred. You need to investigate the cause of this error.			
	Control	The job starts and finishes.			
	Reject	Rejected rows are output.			
	Reset	A job is reset.			
Event	A message describing the event. The first line of the message is displayed. If a message has an ellipsis () at the end, it contains more than one line. You can view the full message in the Event Detail window.				

This column... Contains this information...

## The Event Detail Window

The full message for an event can be viewed in the Event Detail window. To display the Event Detail window, select an event in the Job Log view and do one of the following:

- Choose View ➤ Detail.
- Choose **Detail** from the shortcut menu.
- Double-click the event line.
- Press Ctrl-D.

🗮 Event De	tail				_ 🗆 ×
Project:	MyStore (mk70)	Job name:	DEMO		Close
Event #:	53	Timestamp:	1996-12-20 11:39:39		Next
Eivent type:	Reject	User:	(unknown)		 Previous
Message:					
DEM0.STAG	EB.REJECTS: 90 Rows rejected			4	<u>С</u> ору
					<u>H</u> elp
1				7	

This window contains a summary of the job and event details. The fields are described in the following table:

# This field... Contains this information...

Project	The name of the project and the DataStage server.
Event #	The ID assigned to the event during the job run.
Event type	The type of event. The event types are:
	• Info
	• Warning
	• Fatal
	• Control
	• Reject
	• Reset
	For a description of each event type, see "Job Log View" on page 6-1.

The Job Log File

This field... Contains this information...

Job name	The name of the job.
Timestamp	The date and time the event occurred.
User	The name of the user who reset, validated, or ran the job.
Message	The full event message. The text contains names of stages in the job which were processed during this event. If you are viewing an event with an event type of Fatal or Warning, this text describes the cause of the event.

You can use **Copy** to copy the event details and message or selected text to the Clipboard for use elsewhere. Click **Next** or **Previous** to display details for the next or previous event in the list. Click **Close** to close the window.

#### **Viewing Related Logs**

To examine the log entries for a job that was run as part of a batch:

- 1. Switch to the log entries for the batch itself by selecting a log entry.
- 2. Do one of the following:
  - Choose **Tools** ➤ **Batch** ➤ **Related Log**.
  - Choose **Related Log** from the shortcut menu.

You see the first log entry for the batch that the job belongs to.

#### Filtering the Job Log View

By default, the information displayed in the Job Log view includes all the events that have occurred for the chosen job, regardless of how many times the job has been run. On an established system, the display may include more information than you need.

If you want specific information, for example, a list of all the events after a particular date, you can use the **Filter** option.

To start the Filter option, do one of the following:

- Choose **View** > **Filter Entries**... from the menu bar.
- Choose **Filter**... from the shortcut menu.
- Press Ctrl-T.
The Filter dialog box appears:

Filter		×
From ○ <u>O</u> ldest ○ <u>S</u> tart of last run ○ <u>Day</u> 03 / 07 / 2001 <u>I</u> ime: 15 : 15 Through ○ <u>Newest</u> ○ Day: 04 / 08 / 1997 <u>Time</u> : 15 : 11 ▼	Type Information Warning Eatal Reject Other	OK Cancel <u>H</u> elp
C Select <u>a</u> ll entries ⊙ <u>L</u> ast:	100	

You can choose to display only those entries between particular dates and times. You can also further reduce the entries by displaying only those entries with a particular event type.

To use the **Filter** option:

- 1. Choose where to start the filter by clicking the appropriate option button:
  - Oldest displays all the entries from the oldest event in the log file.
  - Start of last run displays the entries from the start of the last run.
  - **Day** and **Time** displays all the entries from the specified date and time. Enter the date and time or click the arrow buttons. The format of the date depends on how your Windows system is set up, for example, *dd\mm\yyyy* or *mm\dd\yyyy*. The time is always in 24-hour format.
- 2. Choose where to end the filter by clicking the appropriate option button:
  - Newest displays entries up to the most recent date and time.
  - Day and Time displays all the entries up to the specified date and time.

- 3. Choose what to display from the filtered selection by clicking the appropriate option button:
  - **Select all entries** displays all the entries between the chosen start and end points.
  - **Last** displays the last *n* number of entries, where *n* is a number. The default setting is 100. Click the arrow buttons to increase or decrease the value, or enter a value 1 through 9999.
- 4. Choose the event types you want to display by selecting the appropriate check boxes:
  - Information
  - Warning
  - Fatal
  - Reject
  - Other. All event types other than those listed above.
- 5. Click **OK** to activate the filter. The updated Job Log view displays the entries that meet the filter criteria. The status bar indicates that the entries have been filtered.

The Job Log view uses the filter settings until you change them or redisplay the whole log file. To display all the entries, choose **View**  $\succ$  **Show All**.

# **Purging Log File Entries**

You must purge job log entries routinely so that the log files do not become too large. There are three ways to purge log entries:

- Automatically for a whole project. This is set up by the DataStage administrator. See *DataStage Administrator's Guide*.
- Automatically for each job. You can override any project-wide purging policy and set the purging policy for individual jobs.
- Manually for individual jobs.

You purge log entries for a job from the Clear Log dialog box. To display the Clear Log dialog box, select the job in the Job Status view, then choose **Job** > **Clear Log**....

Clear Log	×
For job: jj1	OK
Oldest entry: 11/06/97 09:29:26	Cancel
Immediate purge	<u>H</u> elp
○ Auto-purge	
Immediate © <u>Clear all entries</u>	
C Up to last run	
C <u>B</u> efore date: 28 / 07 / 1997 €	
- Auto-purge-	-
Enabled for this job	
C Up to previous: 📘 📑 job run(s)	
€ @ver: 1 🖨 day(s) old	

**For job** shows the name of the job. **Oldest entry** shows the date and time of the oldest entry in the log file. (The format of the date and time may look different on your screen depending on your Windows settings.)

# **Purging Log Entries Immediately**

Click **Immediate purge** to select the **Immediate** area. You set the purging criteria by clicking one of the following:

- Clear all entries. Deletes all entries in the log file.
- Up to last run. Deletes all entries except the last one.
- **Before date.** Deletes all entries before the specified date. Specify the date by clicking the arrow buttons or entering the values directly.

The log file is purged after you click **OK**.

The Job Log File

# **Purging Log Entries Automatically**

Click **Auto-purge** to select the **Auto-purge** area. You set the purging criteria by clicking one of the following:

- **Up to previous** *n* **job runs.** Purges old log entries, leaving the last *n* entries in the file.
- Over *n* days old. Purges all log entries over *n* days old.

Specify *n* by clicking the arrow buttons or entering the value directly.

Click **OK** to close the dialog box. The log file is purged at the next job run, and at subsequent job runs, according to your settings.

DataStage Operator's Guide

# Glossary

This glossary contains terms that have a specific meaning in Datastage.			
active stage	A stage in a job that carries out processing. Only active stages can be monitored from a Monitor window. See Chapter 5.		
data source	A source for the data to be processed in a DataStage job, for example, a database, file, or device.		
DataStage Administrator	The client program used for administering DataStage projects. See <i>DataStage Administrator's</i> <i>Guide</i> .		
DataStage Designer	A graphical design program used to design and develop DataStage jobs. See <i>DataStage Developer's Guide</i> .		
DataStage Director	A program used to run and monitor DataStage jobs.		
DataStage Manager	A program used to view and manage the contents of the Repository. See <i>DataStage Developer's Guide</i> .		
DataStage Server	The DataStage component that links the DataStage client programs to the server engine.		
developer	The person designing and developing DataStage jobs.		
job	A program that defines how to extract, cleanse, transform, integrate, and load data into a target database. Jobs are designed and packaged by the developer, using DataStage Designer. Compiled jobs are run through DataStage Director.		
job batches	A group of jobs that are run together as a sequence. See Chapter 4.		
job log	A file containing entries for events that occur during a job run. You view log entries from the Job Log view. See Chapter 6.		

This glossary contains terms that have a specific meaning in DataStage

Glossary-1

job parameter	A variable included in the job design, for example, a file name or a password. A suitable value must be entered for the variable when the job is validated, scheduled, or run.
link	A link joins stages of a job, and comprises either a flow of data, or a reference look-up. You can monitor links in a job using a Monitor window. See Chapter 5.
operator	The person running, scheduling, and monitoring DataStage jobs.
project	A collection of jobs and the components required to develop or run them. The level at which you enter DataStage from a client. DataStage projects must be licensed.
Repository	A server area where projects and jobs are stored. The Repository also holds definitions for data, stages, and so on. The Repository is accessed through the DataStage Manager. See <i>DataStage Developer's Guide</i> .
server engine (UniVerse)	The server software that holds, cleanses, and trans- forms the data during a DataStage job run.
stage	A component that represents a data source, a processing step, or a data mart in a DataStage job. See also <b>active stage</b> .

# Index

### Α

active stages 5-1 definition Gl-1 Add to schedule dialog box 4-4 aggregating data 1-2 alternative printer 2-16 alternative project 2-23 Attach to Project dialog box 2-2

# B

batches, see job batches

# С

changing the printer setup 2-16 choosing an alternative printer 2-16 cleaning up job resources 3-11, 5-5 clearing job log file 6-6 job status file 3-15 client components of DataStage 1-2 columns, sorting 2-14 CPU usage, showing 5-4 creating job batches 4-1

### D

data aggregating 1-2 extracting 1-2 transforming 1-2 data sources, definition Gl-1 data warehouses, overview 1-1 DataStage client components 1-2 introduction 1-2 projects 1-3 DataStage Administrator, definition Gl-1 DataStage Designer 1-2 definition Gl-1 **DataStage Director** definition Gl-1 exiting 2-24 starting 2-1 DataStage Director options 2-17 display settings 2-20 Filter settings 2-18 limits 2-19, 2-24 Main window size and position 2-18 Options dialog box 2-17 priority 2-22 Refresh setting 2-18 save settings 2-18 tracing 2-21 DataStage Director window 2-3 display area 2-6 menu bar 2-3 shortcut menus 2-8 status bar 2-5 toolbar 2-5 DataStage Manager 1-2 definition Gl-1 DataStage Server 2-1 definition Gl-1 default display options 2-17

deleting job batches 4-7 jobs 3-11 Designer, *see* DataStage Designer developer 1-3 definition Gl-1 Developer's Edition 1-3 Director, *see* DataStage Director displaying Monitor window 5-1 Stage Status window 5-5 ToolTips 2-5 documentation conventions viii

# Е

editing job batches 4-6 ending job processes 3-12, 5-5 entering job parameters 3-1 Event Detail window 6-3 examples filtering views 2-12 Job Log view 6-1 Job Schedule view 3-5 Job Status view 2-6 exiting DataStage Director 2-24 extracting data 1-2

# F

Filter dialog box 6-5 Filter Jobs dialog box 2-11 Filter option 2-10, 6-4 filtering examples 2-12 Job Schedule view 2-10 Job Status view 2-10 Find dialog box 2-13 Find option 2-13

# Η

Help system, starting 2-4

# I

icons, hiding 2-4

# J

job administration 3-11 job batches 4-1 copying 4-6 creating 4-1 definition Gl-1 deleting 4-7 editing 4-6 related log entries 6-4 rescheduling 4-5 running 4-3 scheduling 4-3, 4-4 unscheduling 4-5 job log file 6-1 purging entries 6-6 Job Log view 2-4, 6-1 Event Detail window 6-3 filtering the display 6-4 shortcut menus 2-9 job log, definition Gl-1 job parameters 3-1 definition Gl-2 job processes ending 3-12, 5-5 viewing 3-12, 5-5 Job Properties Job control page 4-2 Job Resources dialog box 3-12 job resources, cleaning up 3-11, 5-5 Job Run Options dialog box 3-1 Job Schedule Detail window 3-7 Job Schedule view 2-3, 3-5 filtering the display 2-10 shortcut menu 2-9

DataStage Operator's Guide

Job Status Detail dialog box 2-7 job status file, clearing 3-15 Job Status view 2-3, 2-6 filtering the display 2-10 shortcut menus 2-8 jobs definition Gl-1 deleting 3-11 overview 1-3 rescheduling 3-10 resetting 3-4 running 3-3 scheduling 3-5 status 2-6 stopping 3-4 unscheduling 3-10 validating 3-2

#### L

limiters row 2-19 warning 2-19 link information, showing 5-3 links, definition Gl-2 locks releasing 3-12, 5-5 viewing 3-12, 5-5 log file, *see* job log file

### Μ

menus pull-down 2-4 shortcut 2-8 Monitor window % CPU 5-4 cleaning up job resources 5-5 clearing settings 5-3 contents 5-2 displaying 5-1 link information 5-3 saving settings 5-3 shortcut menu 2-10 switching between 5-5

# 0

operator 1-3 definition Gl-2 Operator's Edition 1-3 options, DataStage Director 2-17 overview of data warehouses 1-1 of DataStage 1-2 of jobs 1-3 of projects 1-3

# P

parameters, *see* job parameters Print dialog box 2-14 Print Setup dialog box 2-16 printers, choosing alternative 2-16 printing current view 2-14 priority of Director process 2-22 process priority 2-22 projects choosing alternative 2-23 definition Gl-2 overview 1-3 purging log file entries 6-6

# R

Refresh setting 2-18 related logs 6-4 releasing locks 3-12 Repository, definition Gl-2 rescheduling job batches 4-5 jobs 3-10 resetting jobs 3-4 row limiters 2-19 running jobs 3-3 immediately 3-3 scheduling 3-3

# S

saving window settings 2-18 scheduling job batches 4-4 jobs 3-5 server engine, definition Gl-2 setting default display options 2-17 shortcut menus 2-8 in Monitor windows 2-10 in the Job Log view 2-9 in the Job Schedule view 2-9 in the Job Status view 2-8 showing CPU usage 5-4 link information 5-3 sorting columns 2-14 Stage Status window contents 5-6 displaying 5-5 stages, definition Gl-2 starting DataStage Director 2-1 Help system 2-4 status jobs 2-6 stages 5-2 status bar 2-5 stopping jobs 3-4 switching between Monitor windows 5-5

### Т

times, comparing client and server 2-18 toolbar 2-5 ToolTips 2-5 trace level 2-21 tracing options 2-21 transforming data 1-2

#### U

unscheduling job batches 4-5 jobs 3-10 using Filter option 6-4 Find option 2-13 job parameters 3-1

### V

validating jobs 3-2 viewing event details 6-3 job processes 3-12, 5-5 job status details 2-7 jobs in another project 2-23 jobs on a different server 2-24 locks 3-12, 5-5 schedule details 3-7 views filtering 2-10 Job Log 2-4, 6-1 Job Schedule 2-3, 3-5 Job Status 2-3, 2-6

#### W

warning limiter 2-19 window settings, saving 2-18

Index-4

DataStage Operator's Guide

To help us provide you with the best documentation possible, please make your comments and suggestions concerning this manual on this form and fax it to us at **508-366-3669, attention Technical Publications Manager**. All comments and suggestions become the property of Ardent Software, Inc. We greatly appreciate your comments.

#### Comments

Name:	_Date:
Position:	_Dept:
Organization:	Phone:
Address:	

Name of Manual: DataStage Operator's Guide

Part Number: 76-1001-DS3.5